
 

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

AGENDA 
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Monday, May 1, 2023 — 2:00 P.M. 
 

The VCMWD Board of Directors welcomes the public to its Board Room in a limited 
capacity while accommodating virtual observation options as a convenience to the 
public.  Seating inside the Board Room will be spaced to accommodate social distancing. 
Additionally, Board Meetings continue to be livestreamed for those who wish to observe 
remotely.  Please note that in the event of technical issues that disrupt the meeting 
livestream or receipt of public comments by phone or email, the meeting will continue. 
 

Instructions for members of the public who wish to address the Board of Directors:   
 
Members of the public who wish to address the Board of Directors under “Audience Comments/ 
Questions” or on specific agenda items, may do so as instructed below.  All comments will be 
subject to a limit of three (3) minutes. 
 

• Making Public Comment for Those Attending In-Person:  Members of the public who wish to 
observe or to address the Board may join the Board Members at the noticed, physical location. 
A Request to Speak slip is required to be submitted to the Board Secretary prior to start of the 
meeting (if possible). 

• Phone Comments During the Meeting: Before the meeting, or before public comment period for 
the item closes during the meeting, submit a telephone number by email to the Board Secretary 
at publiccomments@vcmwd.org, together with the agenda item number, and the Board Secretary 
will call when the board is ready to hear public comments;  or 

• Emailed Comments: Before the meeting, or before public comment period for that item closes at 
the meeting, email your comments to the Board Secretary at publiccomments@vcmwd.org and 
the Board Secretary and it will be read aloud at the public comment period; or 

• Written Comments: Written comments can be also be physically dropped off in advance of the 
meeting at the District’s Administrative Office or mailed in advance of the meeting to 29300 Valley 
Center Rd., Valley Center, CA 92082, for receipt no later than 1:00 pm on meeting day. 

These public comment procedures supersede the District’s standard public comment policies and 
procedures to the contrary. If modifications or accommodations from individuals with disabilities are 
required, such persons should provide a request at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting by 
email to the Board Secretary at kperaino@vcmwd.org. 
 

Meeting Broadcast: Members of the public may watch the meeting electronically by visiting the 
District’s website at vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents and then clicking the link listed below “live 
stream” on the page. 
 

Meeting Documents: Board Meeting Packets (except for closed session materials) will be made 
available to the public once distributed to the Board. Please visit the District’s website at 
vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents for Agenda and related Board Meeting Documents.  
 
ROLL CALL 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 

At its option, the Board may approve the agenda, delete an item, reorder items and add an item to 
the agenda per the provisions of Government Code Section 54954.2. 

mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org
mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org
mailto:kperaino@vcmwd.org
http://vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents
http://vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents


Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

  2 May 1, 2023 

AUDIENCE COMMENTS/QUESTIONS 
 

Comments and inquiries from the audience will be received on any matter not on the agenda, but 
within the jurisdiction of the Board. Comments and inquiries pertaining to an item on the agenda 
will be received during the deliberation of the agenda item (Government Code §54954.3). 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Consent calendar items will be voted on together by a single motion unless separate action is 
requested by a Board member, staff, or member of the audience. 
 
1. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Monday, April 3, 2023;  

2. Audit Demands and Wire Disbursements; and 

3. Quarterly Expense Reimbursement Disclosures (Oct. 1 – Dec. 31, 2022) per GC §53065.5. 

 
ACTION AGENDA 
 

4. Request Action in Support of VCFPD Increased Property Tax Allocation: 
 
Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-15, supporting VCFPD’s request for an increase from 2% to 
6% of the County’s 1% General Property Tax to the San Diego County Board of Supervisors 
will be requested.   
 

a. Report by General Manager 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. If desired, consider adopting Resolution No. 2023-15 
 

5. Request Authorization to Enter into a Master Services Agreement with the Mission 
Resources Conservation District (MRCD) for Water Conservation Services:   
 

Authorization to enter into a Master Services Agreement with the MRCD for water conservation 
services will be requested. 
 
a. Report by the General Manager 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. If desired, motion to approve or deny  
 

6. Review of the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) Consolidated 
Redevelopment Oversight Board Election: 
 
An opportunity for the Board to provide direction to the Board President on casting a ballot 
for the position of Special District Representative for the San Diego LAFCO Consolidated 
Redevelopment Oversight Board. 
 

a. Report by General Manager 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. If desired, motion to approve or deny  



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

  3 May 1, 2023 

7. Request to Set Public Hearing Date for May 15, 2023 to Consider Proposed Miscellaneous 
Water Meter Fees and Charges, and Related Administrative Code Changes: 
 

Request to set the date and time of the public hearing to consider adopting the proposed 
miscellaneous water meter fees and charges, will be considered. 
 

a.  Report by District Engineer 
b.  Discussion 
c.  Audience comments/questions 
d.  If desired, set public hearing date to May 15, 2023 

 
INFORMATIONAL AGENDA 

 

8. Review of Budget Policies: 
 

A review of the District’s Budget Policies will be given. 
 

a. Report by Director of Finance and Administration 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. Information item only, no action required 
 

9. Review of Revenue and Expense Projections in the Proposed Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget: 
 

A review of the District’s revenue and expense projections in the proposed FY 2023-24 
Budget will be given. 
 

a. Report by Director of Finance and Administration 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. Information item only, no action required 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S AGENDA 

 

10. Review of General Information: 
 

General Informational items will be reviewed. 
 

a. Report by General Manager 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. Information item only, no action required 

 
DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL’S AGENDA 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ AGENDA and AB1234 REPORTING 

 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

  4 May 1, 2023 

11. Board of Directors’ Per Diem Biennial Review and Consideration of Modification: 
 

Board direction regarding initiating the process to adjust the Board of Directors’ per diem rate 
will be requested. 

 
a. Report by General Manager 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. If desired, motion to approve or deny modification of per diem compensation  

 
 
 

CLOSED SESSIONS 
 

At any time during the regular session, the Board may adjourn to closed session to consider 
litigation, personnel matters, or to discuss with legal counsel matters within the attorney-client 
privilege. Discussion of litigation is within the attorney-client privilege and may be held in closed 
session.  Authority: Government Code §54956.9. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 
 

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC: 
 

This agenda was posted at least 72 hours before the meeting in a location freely accessible 
to the public. No action may be taken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, 
except as provided by Government Code Section 54954.2. Any written materials provided 
to a majority of the Board of Directors within 72 hours prior to the meeting regarding any 
item on this agenda will be available for public inspection on the District’s website. The 
agenda is available for public review on the District’s website, http://www.vcmwd.org.  
 
For questions or request for information related to this agenda contact Kirsten Peraino, 
Board Secretary, at (760) 735-4517 or publiccomments@vcmwd.org. Upon request, 
this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with 
disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the American with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any 
person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in a meeting should direct such request to the Board Secretary at least 48 hours 
before the meeting, if possible. 
 

 

 
— End of Agenda — 

http://www.vcmwd.org/
mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org


 

 

 

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
    Regular Board Meeting 
    Monday, April 3, 2023 − 2:00 P.M. 
   Place: Board Room  
    29300 Valley Center Road;  Valley Center, CA  92082

  
The Valley Center Municipal Water District Board of Directors’ meeting was called to 
order by President Polito at 2:00 PM, via teleconference and in-person.  President Polito 
established for the record that all Directors were able to hear the proceedings, that all members 
of the Board were able to hear the Directors participating remotely clearly, and that all votes 
would be taken by a roll call vote pursuant to the provisions of the Brown Act.  The meeting was 
also livestreamed. 

 
ROLL CALL 
 

Board Members Present: President Polito, Vice President Ferro, Directors Holtz, Smith, and Ness.  
 

Staff Members Present: General Manager Arant, Director of IT Pilve, District Engineer Grabbe, 
Director of Finance and Administration Pugh, Director of Operations and Facilities Lovelady, 
Manager of Accounting Velasquez, Senior Engineer Lyuber, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 
Peraino, Project Manager Powers, and General Counsel Norvell (present in-person); with Federal 
Consultant Howells (HGR) teleconferencing. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS / QUESTIONS 
 

President Polito established for the record the process by which public comments are received by 
the Board; this process was also described in the Agenda for the meeting. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR  

  

1. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Monday, March 20, 2023; 

2. Audit Demands for Check Nos. 165668 ─ 165757 from March 10th thru 23rd, 2023;  

3. Treasurer’s Report for Month Ending February 28, 2023; and 

4. Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-12, Affirming the District’s Authorized Debt Limit per 
Ordinance No. 171, Effective January 1, 2023.  

 

Action:  Upon motion by Holtz, seconded by Smith; and unanimously carried, the previously 
listed consent calendar items were approved. 

 
ACTION AGENDA 
 

5. Consider Request from VCFPD for Support on Property Tax Reapportionment: 
 
The Board was asked to consider a request from the Valley Center Fire Protection District 
(VCFPD) for VCMWD to support a County Property Tax Transfer from the County General Fund 
to the VCFPD. General Manager Arant gave a brief introduction before passing the presentation 
off to VCFPD Chief Joe Napier. 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

2 April 3, 2023 

Currently, the VCFPD receives 2% of the 1% property taxes paid annually by each property 
owner to the County of San Diego. According to the VCFPD, this tax apportionment formula 
(set by the County of San Diego in 1982) prevents the District from adding new stations and 
apparatus, recruiting and retaining firefighters, paramedics, and EMTs, and maintaining its 
excellent Class 2 rating. Specifically, the VCFPD is requesting that the San Diego County 
Board of Supervisors increase the tax apportionment from 2% to 6%, which affords the Fire 
Protection District another $1,200,000 in annual revenue. This will result in no additional tax 
burden on property owners or remove current tax revenues from other taxing agencies, such 
as VCMWD or the school district, stated Chief Napier.  
 
VCFPD pointed out, that in the span of 10 years, their service area has grown from a population 
of just under 9,000 to over 23,000. With this population increase also has come an increased 
demand for emergency services. The demand for emergency services in Valley Center has 
consistently increased; with the increased call volume, VCFPD has remained committed to the 
citizens and visitors of Valley Center through continuous improvement. 
 
Action:  Upon motion by Smith, seconded by Ferro; motion to act in support of the updated 

apportionment was unanimously approved. Staff will bring back resolution in 
support of, to the next regularly scheduled Board Meeting. 

 
6. San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) Special District Election: 

 

The Board was provided an opportunity to provide input to the Board President on casting a 
ballot for the positions of San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) Special 
District Regular and Alternate Members.  General Manager Arant reminded the Board that 
Special Districts within San Diego County have two regular seats and one alternate seat on the 
San Diego LAFCO Commission. Currently up for election are one of the Special District Regular 
Seats and the Special District Alternate Seat. The candidates are as follows: 

 

• Nominees for LAFCO Regular Member:  

o James Pennock – Vallecitos Water District 
o Ross Pike – North County Fire Protection District 
o Barry Willis (Incumbent) – Alpine Fire Protection District 

 

• Nominees for LAFCO Alternate Member:  

o Dave Drake (Incumbent) – Rincon del Diablo Municipal Water District 
o Jeff Griffith – Vallecitos Water District 

 
Action:  President Polito was guided by Board input to cast the District's vote for the LAFCO 

Special District Election. Upon motion by Smith, seconded by Holtz; motion to select 
Barry Willis for the Regular Member position and David Drake as the Alternate was 
unanimously approved. 

 

7. Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-13, Awarding the Construction Contract, Construction 
Management Contracts, and Construction Design Support Contract for the North 
County Emergency Storage Project–Valley Center Improvements & 14-inch Replacement 
and Relocation:   
 

Senior Engineer Lyuber gave a summary of the North County Emergency Storage Project Valley 
Center Improvements & 14-inch Replacement and Relocation (“Project”). Construction Phase 
Contracts and Professional Services Agreements (“PSA”) for the Project were requested to be 
awarded to the following: 
 
 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

3 April 3, 2023 

 

• Orion Construction Corporation – Construction Contract ($8,796,000); 
• Gannett Fleming, Inc. – Construction Management PSA ($1,307,199); 
• Rockwell Construction Services – Electrical, Instrumentation, & Controls Oversight PSA  

($162,400); and 
• Michael Baker International, Inc. – Construction Design Support PSA ($175,000). 

 
Construction Contract: 

In accordance with the formal bidding procedures set forth in Article 140.2(b) of the District's 
Administrative Code, the District received bids for the Project on January 26, 2023. Ten contractors 
attended the two mandatory pre-bid meetings, with four submitting bids.  The bid was organized 
into Schedule A for the ESP-related items and Schedule B for the 14-inch Pipeline Relocation 
scope of work, with the award based on the lowest total bid price. The apparent low bidder was 
Orion Construction Corporation with a total bid of $8,796,000, which was 3% higher than the 
Engineer’s Estimate ($8.5M at the time of the bid) and 2% lower than the second lowest bid.  

Construction Management Professional Services Agreement: 

In accordance with the formal procurement procedures set forth in Article 135.5(d) of the 
District's Administrative Code for project-specific professional and consulting services, staff 
administered the selection process for Construction Management Services. A Request for 
Proposals (RFP) was advertised in a regularly circulated newspaper publication and posted on 
the District website. Three qualified firms submitted proposals: Gannett Fleming, Ardurra, and 
Reilly Construction Management. An interview panel consisting of a representative from 
VCMWD, SDCWA, and YMWD, interviewed each firm and scored them based on their 
qualifications, experience, and demonstrated ability to perform the scope of work. Gannett 
Fleming was unanimously selected as the best-suited firm to perform the required construction 
management services. Staff negotiated a fee based on a comparison of costs submitted by 
other firms and fair market value, settling on a mutually agreed upon amount of $1,307,199. 
Gannett Fleming's scope of services includes managing all aspects of the Project, except for 
the electrical, instrumentation, and control items. In February 2023 staff administered 
procurement of professional services to perform construction management, and selected 
Gannett Fleming and Rockwell Construction Services.  

The Project entails complicated electrical, instrumentation, and controls strategies. Rockwell 
Construction Services (RCS) is a consulting firm that specializes in this field. The District has 
a successful track record utilizing RCS as a District representative on various prior projects 
(including the design phase of this Project), ensuring the successful execution of this particular 
focus. Staff feels it is prudent to retain RCS for the construction phase to ensure the best 
possible end product. RCS scope will entail inspection and coordination of all electrical, 
instrumentation, and control items (including SCADA integration). Staff negotiated a fee of 
$162,400, which is fair and reasonable based on a comparison to other similar projects. 

Construction Design Support: 

It is necessary to retain the Engineer of Record (EOR), Michael Baker International, Inc. to 
support design-related items during construction. Scope includes reviewing certain submittals, 
participating in resolving any items requiring design input, and final commissioning ensuring the 
intended design concepts are observed. Given the unpredictable nature of these types of 
services, the effort cannot be fully defined. Therefore, it is customary to establish a Not to Exceed 
contract, used as needed when items requiring EOR involvement arise. The proposed contract 
amount of $175,000 is based on 2% of the total construction contract, which is a convention 
typically used in the industry. 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

4 April 3, 2023 

Funding for the Project will come from two sources, the SDCWA, and the District. Costs related 
to the ESP portion will be funded by the SDCWA and costs related to the 14-inch Pipeline 
Replacement scope of work funded by the District. The current budget allocation for the 14-inch 
Pipeline Relocation and Preplacement Project is $725,000. An additional $100,000 authorization 
request for this portion of the Project is included in the proposed FY 2023-24 Budget. 
 

The contract allows for 560 Calendar Days from Notice to Proceed: 
 

• Notice of Award:  April 3, 2023 
• Process Contracts: April – May 2023 
• Notice to Proceed: June 2023 
• Project Completion: December 2024 

 

Staff recommended the adoption of Resolution No. 2023-13, awarding the following contracts 
associated with the North County Emergency Storage Project–Valley Center Improvements & 
14-inch Replacement and Relocation and authorizing the General Manager to enter into each 
contract on behalf of the District. 
 
Action: Upon motion by Ferro, seconded by Smith; the following resolution was unanimously 

approved: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-13 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT AWARDING 

THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AND MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGEMENT PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS FOR 

THE NORTH COUNTY EMERGENCY STORAGE PROJECT 
VALLEY CENTER IMPROVEMENTS AND 14-INCH 

REPLACEMENT AND RELOCATION 
[PROJECT NOS. 01-00-00-18045 & 01-06-78-51200]   

was adopted by the following vote, to wit:  

  AYES: Directors Polito, Ferro, Holtz, Smith, and Ness 
  NOES: None 
  ABSENT: None 

 

8. Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-14, Ratifying of Staff’s Approval of Change Order 
#1 to the Construction Contract with AMP United, LLC. for the San Gabriel Reservoir 
Paint and Recoat Project: 
 

A brief overview of the San Gabriel No. 1 Reservoir Paint and Recoat Project (“Project”) was 
given by Project Manager Powers. The San Gabriel No. 1 Reservoir is a welded steel reservoir 
constructed in 1972 that serves the San Gabriel pressure zone in the Northern area of the 
District near Couser Canyon Road. During the inspection blasting (before starting the structural 
repairs on the reservoir), District staff identified deformations in the existing rafters and site 
conditions different than described in the contract documents. Resolution of the issues identified 
in the inspection blast resulted in change order requests totaling $109,076 and an additional 
66 days added to the contract time. 
 

A task order with Richard Brady and Associates was initiated to complete a structural analysis 
of the reservoir to ensure that the planned rafter replacements would be sufficient for the long-
term structural integrity of the reservoir. Construction was paused to allow the analysis to be 
completed so structural repair recommendations could be implemented through the construction 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

5 April 3, 2023 

of the project. The structural analysis resulted in the following recommendations: installation of 
an additional 65 earthquake rods, welding of the connections between rafters and girders, and 
replacement of all existing rafters with new rafters of the same size. 
 
While developing the contract documents for the project, the available records from the 
construction of the reservoir in 1972 as well as records related to the recoating project in 1994 
were thoroughly examined but did not contain sufficient data to accurately specify the· size of 
the existing rafters or the methods of connection of the rafters to the girders. The information 
required for the bid documents, which was not available in the records, was determined 
through cursory inspections of the reservoir while it was in service and through engineering 
judgment.  Once the tank was taken out of service for the construction project to begin, a more 
detailed inspection was possible which allowed for the rafters to be measured and more closely 
examined which resulted in the following changes due to differing site conditions: the existing 
outer rafters were larger than described in the contract documents (actual 12-inch vs. plans 
had 10-inch channel); the existing rafters should have shown both bolted and welded at the 
connection to the girders (plans only showed bolted); and the existing inner rafters were smaller 
than described in the contract documents (actual 8-inch vs. plans had 10-inch channel). 
 
Since the total amount of Change Order No. 1 exceeded $35,000 (per District Administrative 
Code for cumulative change order amounts), Board approval is required. The amount of the 
change order is less than the contingency within the project budget and due to the time-
sensitive nature of the proposed changes, staff authorized the work out of concern for further 
delaying the contractor and maintaining the project schedule. Board ratification of this action 
was requested through the adoption of Resolution No. 2023-14, officially ratifying the action 
taken by staff to approve Change Order No. 1 for the San Gabriel No. 1 Reservoir Painting 
and Recoating Project. Upon the conclusion of the initial inspections and structural analysis, the 
following items were determined to be required for the successful rehabilitation of the San 
Gabriel No. 1 Reservoir, as recommended by the structural analysis completed: 

 

• Added 65 earthquake rods to increase the stability of the structure (added 10 days and $22,425 
to the contract); 

• Welded connections between rafters and girders (added 12 days and $17,825 to the contract). 
• Replacement of the outer rafters at the size of the existing rafters, larger than described in 

the contract documents (no change to the schedule and added $22,425 to the contract); 
• Removal of the existing welded rafter connections, in addition to the removal of existing 

bolted connections which were identified in the contract documents (no change to the 
project schedule and added $14,950 to the contract); 

• Repairs to the overflow pipe and associated supports, due to corrosion observed during the 
initial inspection (added 2 days and $2,875 to the contract). 

• Replacement of the inner rafters at the size of the existing rafters, smaller than was 
described in the contract documents (no change to project schedule and deducted $3,750 
from the contract). 

 
In addition, the District paused construction for 42 calendar days on Dec. 16, 2022, and resumed 
construction on Jan. 26, 2023, to allow for the structural analysis to be completed and for 
recommendations from the structural analysis to be implemented in the construction of this 
project. This pause in construction resulted in an additional $32,326 to the contract amount to 
cover additional equipment rental and extended labor costs for the contractor. Mr. Powers 
noted that the project is 47% complete and the total cost of the change order requested to date 
is 6.7% of the original contract amount.  
 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

6 April 3, 2023 

The FY 2022-23 Budget established the total project budget for the San Gabriel Project at 
$2,040,000. Funding for the change order is available from project contingencies as indicated 
in the following project budget summary. Staff recommended that the Board of Directors adopt 
Resolution No. 2023-14 ratifying the approval of Change Order No. 1 for $109,076 to the 
contract with Amp United LLC resulting in a revised total contract amount of $1,731,441. 
 
Action:  Upon motion by Smith, seconded by Ness; the following resolution was unanimously 

approved: 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-14 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT APPROVING 

CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 TO THE CONTRACT WITH AMP UNITED, LLC 
FOR THE SAN GABRIEL NO. 1 PAINTING AND RECOATING PROJECT 

 [PROJECT NO. 01-06-78-51403] 
  
was adopted by the following vote, to wit:  
 
  AYES: Directors Polito, Ferro, Holtz, Smith, and Ness 
  NOES: None 
  ABSENT: None 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S AGENDA 

 

9. San Diego County Water Authority’s Board Meeting Summary: 
 

A report on the San Diego County Water Authority’s Board of Directors’ Meeting of March 23, 
2023 was provided. 
 

Action: Informational item only, no action required. 
 

10. General Information: 
 

General informational items were reported on by General Manager Arant. 
 

Action: Informational item only, no action required. 

 
DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL’S AGENDA 
 

General Counsel Norvell gave a brief update on pending legislation. 

 
CLOSED SESSIONS 

 
At any time during the regular session, the Board may adjourn to closed session to consider 
litigation, personnel matters, or to discuss with legal counsel matters within the attorney-client 
privilege. Discussion of litigation is within the attorney-client privilege and may be held in closed 
session.  Authority: Government Code §54956.9. 

 
 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

7 April 3, 2023 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Action:  Upon motion by Smith, seconded by Ness; motion passes unanimously, the regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors was adjourned at 3:54 PM. 

 
 
ATTEST:       ATTEST: 

 
 
 

____________________________    _____________________________ 
Robert A. Polito, President                   Kirsten N. Peraino, Secretary 











































































































RESOLUTION NO. 2023-15 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  
THE VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT  

SUPPORTING THE REQUEST OF THE  
VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

TO RAISE ITS SAN DIEGO COUNTY TAX ALLOTMENT  
FROM 2% TO 6% OF PROPERTY TAX REVENUES 

 
 WHEREAS, created in 1982, the Valley Center Fire Protection District (VCFPD) 
was formed to serve Fire Protection, Fire Prevention, and Emergency Medical and 
Rescue needs of the then 8,856 residents of the unincorporated community of Valley 
Center; and 

 WHEREAS, at the time of its formation, the VCFPD was allocated 2% of the 
residents’ property taxes to fund the operational needs of the new District, which now 
generates $600,000 in annual tax revenue; and 

 WHEREAS, the tax allotment factor has not changed since the agency’s 
inception, even though the costs of services and population has grown rapidly, therefore 
limiting the Valley Center Fire Protection District’s ability to maintain a Class 2 rating, 
meet its recruiting and retention goals, and build much needed additional facilities; and 

 WHEREAS, Currently, the VCPFD’s current tax allotment is 13th lowest out of 14 
fire districts within the County of San Diego, even with though the District’s population 
has expanded by over 200%, reaching upwards of over 25,000 considering new Park 
Circle Development and the development planned for the Valley Center North Village 
Area; and 

 WHEREAS, the significant growth in the critical life-saving responsibilities for 
county residents by the VCFPD, (largely tied to the land use decisions of the County of 
San Diego), and constrained by a 40-year old tax allocation has resulted in the inability 
of the District to expand the number fire stations, apparatus, as well as the ability to 
effectively recruit and retain firefighter-paramedics and firefighter-EMTs; and  

 WHEREAS, the requested tax allocation adjustment would mean $1.2 million in 
new VCFPD General Property Tax revenue, a significant amount to Valley Center, 
though only representing a 3.8% reduction in the $3,350,852 the county retains of the 
General Property Tax for itself; and 

 WHEREAS, the other special districts serving Valley Center, such as the Valley 
Center-Pauma Unified School and the Valley Center Municipal Water District, each 
providing critical services to the greater unincorporated community, rely on the VCFPD 
to provide critical services for their respective facilities and employees. 



Resolution No. 2023-15 Page 2 of 2 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Valley Center Municipal Water 
District calls on the San Diego County Board of Supervisors to support the Valley Center 
Fire Protection District's request to increase its allotment from 2% to 6% of the County 
General Property Tax to ensure public safety for the Valley Center community, 
surrounding North County communities, and the Tribal Nations. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District Board Secretary is hereby directed 
to transmit a certified copy of this resolution to the San Diego County Board of 
Supervisors at 1600 Pacific Highway, Room 402, San Diego, CA 92101, forthwith. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of 
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT held the 1st day of May, 2023, by 
the following vote, to wit: 

 

\ AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSENT 

 

 

 

       ____________________________ 
       Robert Polito, Board President 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Kirsten Peraino, Board Secretary 
 

 





May 1, 2023 

  
TO:  Honorable President and Board of Directors 
 

FROM: Gary Arant, General Manager  
 

SUBJECT: MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH MISSION RESOURCES 
CONSERVATION  DISTRICT 

  
PURPOSE: 
 
Seek Board authority to enter into a Master Services Agreement with the Mission Resources 
Conservation District (MRCD) to provide District staff with additional expertise and resources 
for the implementation of the AB 1668 / SB 606 Water use efficiency standards and provisions. 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
The AB 1606 - SB 606 “Making Water Conservation a California Way of Life”  Water Use 
Efficiency Regulations are moving into the final regulatory process this summer, with 
implementation slated to start as early as January 2024. These regulations are proposing 
stringent limits on indoor and outdoor residential uses, as well as Commercial, Industrial, and 
Institutional (CII) users. Over the next few months, staff will be advising the Board of the 
progress of these regulations and strategies for implementation.   
 
Parallel to these efforts and activities, recent discussions among retail water agencies have 
highlighted the future need for additional water use efficiency expertise and resources to 
effectively and successfully implement the new regulations. While it is anticipated that 
VCMWD will be able to develop its own in-house staff and expertise at some point, a cost-
effective interim solution might be to contract with the MRCD. As the Board is aware, the 
MRCD has been involved with providing agricultural and landscape efficiency evaluations 
since the early 1990s, initially under contract with Valley Center, Rainbow, and Fallbrook, but 
more recently with the San Diego County Water Authority. 
 
MRCD has also offered this Master Service Agreement to Rainbow MWD and Fallbrook PUD.  
 
Though not yet adopted, the final regulatory requirements currently being considered by the 
State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) will require greater levels of water use 
efficiency by residents and commercial establishments to meet ever-decreasing outside 
water use allowances, while attempting to maintain healthy landscapes. MRCD can provide 
on-site evaluations and consultations for our residential and Commercial, Industrial, and 
Institutional (CII) customers while training our in-house conservation staff as it develops. In 
addition to the services provided through the contracts with the SDCWA, other services the 
MRCD can provide upon VCMWD’s request, are: 
 
• Overall Program Administration to assist in the development of in-house District programs; 
• Overall Water Use Evaluations for Residential and CII Customers; 
• Indoor Water Use Survey as customers deal with GPD allowances being reduced to 42 

gpdpc by 2030, as currently in state law. 
• Outdoor Residential Survey; 
• GIS Mapping and Landscape Area Measurement; 
• Customer “How to” Workshops; and 
• Classroom Educational and Awareness Presentations. 





5 

MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
THE VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT AND 

THE MISSION RESOURCES CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
 

 
I. TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT 
 

a. Master Services Agreement:  

This is a Master Services Agreement (Agreement) between the Valley Center Municipal 
Water District (VCMWD), the “Client”, and the Mission Resource Conservation District 
(Mission RCD), “Contractor”. 
 

b. Scope of Services Provided: 

The Client may select from a list of provided services in Attachment A, and may also 
request additional tasks or program modifications, beyond those services described in the 
statement of work.   
 

c. Term of Agreement: 

The term of the agreement (term) will begin on the signing date of this Agreement and will 
remain in force and effect for 3 years or until terminated by either party as provided for in 
this Agreement. 
 

d. Performance: 

The Parties agree to do everything to ensure that the terms of the Agreement take full force 
and effect. 
 

e. Compensation: 

This Agreement has a “Not to Exceed” value of $37,500 over the three-year term. A retainer 
in the amount of $10,000 is due upon the Client’s execution of this contract. 

The Contractor will invoice the Client on a monthly basis for performed services, drawing 
on the retainer until exhausted.  Once exhausted, the remainder of the contract will be billed 
on a monthly basis and will be due and payable with the Client proving payment by check 
within 30 days of the invoicing date. 
 

f. Confidentiality:  
All Client information under this agreement is confidential and will not be used for any other 
purpose beyond Program execution.  
 

g. Equipment:  

Any additional equipment required by modifications of any program by the Client will be 
provided by or invoiced to the Client and will become property of the Contractor upon the 
expiration of the contract. 

 

Master Services Agreement



2 

h. Insurance:  

Mission RCD carries extensive Worker’s Compensation and General Liability insurance 
with Special District Risk Management Authority. All customers visited on site are required 
to sign Cooperators’ Agreements on the respective Water District’s letterhead. Contractor 
will submit copies of its insurance policies to review by the Client to determine if the 
insurance coverage meets the Client’s standards. 
 

i. Termination: 

Either party may terminate the Agreement with 30-days notification. Any unexpended funds 
from the initial retainer will be refunded to the Client within 60-days of the effective date of 
Agreement termination. 
 

j. Notification: 

Any notifications provided for in the Agreement shall be to: 

Client:      Contractor: 

Valley Center Municipal Water District  Mission Resource Conservation District 
P.O. Box 67      130 E. Alvarado St. 
Valley Center, CA 92082    Fallbrook, CA 92028 
Attn: Gary Arant, General Manager  Attn: Darcy Cook, General Manager 

 
II. STATEMENT OF WORK 
 

a. Contractor Qualifications: 

Contractor has worked with local landowners, property managers, and other stakeholders 
to address pressing local and regional resource conservation concerns. With funding from 
the California Department of Water Resources, in 1983 Mission RCD established one of 
the first Agricultural Mobile Irrigation Labs in the state providing irrigation system 
evaluations for a wide variety of irrigation systems and crops countywide. Since 1990, 
Contractor has implemented resource conservation programs for the California Department 
of Water Resources, the San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA), Camp Pendleton, 
Rancho California Water District, the Municipal Water District of Orange County and 
Riverside County.  

Given the preceding, Contactor is qualified to provide a wide range of services which may 
be selected by the Client, as follows: 

 

b. Programs of interest include: 

1. Agriculture Irrigation Efficiency Program (AIEP) 
i. Agriculture Irrigation Efficiency Evaluations, one acre to < four acres 
ii. Agriculture Irrigation Efficiency Evaluations, four acres or more 
iii. Electrical Conductivity (EC) Mapping/Soil Moisture Soil Moisture Sensor System 

 

Master Services Agreement



3 

2. Regional Conservation Partnership Program (National RCS RCPP) 
3. Water Use Evaluations 

i. Single Residential Water Use Evaluations – Outdoor Only  
ii. Single Residential Water Use Evaluations – Indoor and Outdoor   
iii. Multifamily Residential Water Use Evaluations  

4. Large Landscape Evaluation 
5. Irrigation Checkup 
6. Follow-Up Irrigation Evaluation 
7. Virtual Follow-up Irrigation Controller Visit 
8. GIS Mapping 

 

c. Program Development: 

1. Crop Swap 
2. Soil Moisture Sensors 
3. Workshops 
4. Classroom Presentations on Water and Conservation Topics 

 
d. As-Needed Services: 

As defined by the Client. 

Mission RCD is qualified, experienced, organized and motivated to provide the best 
possible technical assistance to the Client with the proposed Resource Conservation 
Services Program (RCS Program), as described in Attachment B “Organization and Key 
Staff.” While San Diego County currently has sufficient water resources due to their 
strategic investments and water conservation efforts, the region’s long-term supply 
reliability is dependent upon a continued commitment to water-use efficiency by residents, 
producers and businesses with both indoor and outdoor use.  The Agreement seeks to 
address this continued need for water conservation and water use efficiency. 

Residents and producers who adopt eco-friendly habits are not always motivated by a desire 
to conserve water or to help the environment. For example, research in June 2022 showed 
that lifestyle choices of Americans are more often driven by cost savings, convenience and 
other factors, than a desire to conserve natural resources and mitigate the effects of climate 
change. The proposed RCS Program provides residents and producers with no-cost 
opportunities to receive site-specific water-saving recommendations and an improved 
understanding of their water use and their irrigation systems. 

As the incumbent to the SDCWA, the Metropolitan Water District of Orange County and 
Rancho California Water District landscape and agricultural water conservation site 
evaluation programs, the Contractor has administration and technical assistance team 
members who are experienced, capable, innovative and forward-looking managers of field 
conservation programs, and there will be very little ramp-up cost or time constraints with 
standing-up program staffing and structure development.  

Mission RCD’s Water Conservation Program Managers (residential & agriculture) will 
administer the RCS Program with all day-to-day activities, assisting applicants, scheduling 
appointments, and monthly invoicing and reporting with a high level of professional customer 

Master Services Agreement



4 

service and efficiency. Mission RCD managers will provide regular coordination with Client 
agencies for updates and to pre-emptively address any issues, a critical component of the 
program’s success. Mission RCD keeps abreast of current water conservation research and 
new technologies, strategies, programs, and ways to engage customers and would share 
this information with the Client. 

Mission RCD field staff are experienced, trained and verified on inspection procedures and 
are Qualified Water Efficient Landscaper (QWEL) certified. Staff understand water usage 
data and irrigation watering patterns which are reviewed with customers to help inform 
recommendations to better aid with water-use improvements.  

Resource Conservation Districts are independent special districts and not-for-profit entities 
of the State, governed by Division 9 of the State Public Resource Code which mandates 
that an RCD may not exceed the “cost reasonably borne” by the RCD (Pub. Res. Code 
§9403.5) but may not be so low as to constitute a gift of public funds (CA Const., art. XVI, 
§6). Middion RCD’s Board of Directors has an established policy of cost accounting that 
allocates overhead, loaded employee costs, and any other costs incurred by the District to 
ensure fees that reasonably reflect the cost of providing service. 

 
 
III. EXECUTION 

 
The Agreement was executed on the _____day of May, 2023 by: 
 
 
 
Client:         Contractor: 
 
 
 
________________________________            _________________________________ 
Gary Arant          Date       Darcy Cook                  Date 
General Manager          General Manager 
Valley Center Municipal Water District         Mission Resource Conservation District 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Master Services Agreement



5 

ATTACHMENT A  

SERVICES 
 

I. Services: 

All services are task order based and described below; each task has a statement of work 
outlining the services provided and its fee. The estimate of hours and rates are listed in the 
Cost Proposal and Fee Schedule below and are subject to change by mutual agreement 
between both parties. Once the task orders and schedule are approved by the Client, a written 
confirmation to proceed will be issued to Mission RCD to initiate performance of services under 
each Task Order. Mission RCD will begin performance within seven calendar days after 
receipt of written confirmation. 

Program participants will align with the Client’s service area. As such, the program participant, 
the Client, and its designee(s) will allow access to the water use data.  The Consultant will 
use such water use data in the conduct of its regular Program business, including grant 
reporting and promotional activity. Except for the water use data described above, the 
Consultant and its designees will treat account holder information in a manner consistent with 
the California Public Records Act, including but not limited to California Government Code 
Section 6254 et seq. 

 
II. Program Administration: 

The Resource Conservation Services (RCS) Program will be administered by Mission RCD’s 
Water Conservation Program Manager who is experienced with scheduling and invoicing 
processes and works closely with field staff, Mission RCD’s District Manager, and the Client 
Program Manager(s). The Water Conservation Program Manager provides best in-class 
customer service to applicants and to customers experiencing any scheduling issues or 
concerns. For backup support and to provide staffing redundancy, Mission RCD’s 
Conservation Program Assistant has been trained on program administration tasks, is QWEL 
certified, and is available to support administration and other tasking as needed.  Program 
Administration tasking includes the following high-level tasks included as an hourly rate in the 
service areas budget.  

• Provide customer support via phone, email and website, assisting applicants with 
questions, application support and site visit scheduling. 

• Review electronic applications for completeness, eligibility, and verification that 
applicant is the water account holder, property owner or a tenant, and request required 
permissions from the Client Water District. 

• Coordinate field service approval, account information, and obtain water use data from 
participating member agencies. 

• Communicate with the Client Project Manager(s) and Mission RCD District Manager to 
discuss program updates and to address any issues in a timely manner. 

• Track and report expenditures and activities. 

• Ensure field staff are fully prepared for field evaluations, manage customer no-show 
situations and any field staff delays. 

• Ensure a high standard of quality control of all documentation and online entries. 

Master Services Agreement Attachment A



6 

• Manage monthly invoicing and reporting in a prompt and timely manner. Invoices can 
include values (i.e. water pressure values; 30-S, 40-D), a detailed review, and clean-
up of each report created by the site evaluator.  The field work information is imported 
to the Water Conservation Program Manager’s computer and into the invoice 
spreadsheet/template. This is edited and cleaned up to verify all the numbers match 
the work done for the month. Once this step is complete, the invoice is sent to the Client 
Water District Program Managers for approval, and all evaluation reports are uploaded 
to the Mission RCD shared drive and once approved, the individual Client water district 
invoices are created and sent off with pertaining reports. 

• Implement acknowledgement of the Client support on Mission RCD’s website, program 
documents, marketing material, reports, flyers and brochures. 

The monthly administrative fee captures administration efforts not directly included with the 
specific field services and consists of the following: 

• Generate invoicing and tracking of performed Client activities. 
• Provide the Client with quarterly reports and other reports as requested 
• Prepare monthly meeting materials and track attendance to keep all parties informed 

of any issues, updates and new conservation developments  
• Maintain indirect costs TBD 

 

1. Agriculture Irrigation Efficiency Program (AIEP):  

The Agriculture Irrigation Efficiency Program (AIEP) provides technical assistance to 
growers to enable them to irrigate crops as efficiently as possible to obtain the maximum 
economic benefit from limited water resources. The San Diego County Water Authority in 
cooperation with Mission RCD developed the AIEP for agricultural customers in the 
SDCWA service area, providing eligible growers with technical assistance and cost-
sharing as reimbursement for recommended irrigation system equipment retrofits that 
improve distribution uniformity and efficiency. Growers must have one or more acres of 
planted, irrigated agricultural trees or crops. An efficient irrigation system provides crops 
with the required amount of water at the correct time and avoids costly over-watering. 

a. Evaluations with a Minimum of One Acre but Less Than Four Acres ─ 

Agricultural evaluations are available to avocado and citrus groves and other agricultural 
operations with a minimum of one (1) acre but less than four (4) acres of agriculture          
in the Client’s service area. Evaluation consists of the following components: 

• Verify that the customer is a Client water district customer. 

• Obtain the customer’s signature on the Cooperator’s Agreement before the 
evaluation is begun which allows the Program field staff to be on the property for 
the purpose of performing the evaluation. The Cooperator’s Agreement contains a 
“hold harmless” provision in favor of the Client water district. 

• Ascertain acreage under irrigation. 

• Examine existing irrigation system while it is operating to determine system pressure; 
emitter, micro-sprinkler or sprinkler flow rates; system application rates; system pressure; 
visual observation of other factors and conditions affecting system performance. 

Master Services Agreement Attachment A



7 

• Determine the soil characteristics and rooting depth as well as other observations 
and determinations to further examine soil-plant-water relationships as needed to 
improve overall irrigation efficiency. 

• Prepare a Customer Report: The report for a minimum of one (1) acre but less than 
four (4) acres of agriculture will contain the following: 

i. Results of the emissions uniformity test. 
ii. Recommendations for improving emissions uniformity (if needed). 
iii. Brief discussion of observations made during the evaluation and a monthly 

checklist for maintenance activities that should be performed on irrigation system. 
iv. A description of the irrigation nozzles used and their flow characteristics. 
v. An irrigation schedule based on sprinkler spacing, canopy size, and improved 

emissions uniformity will be produced at the audit and handed to the customer. 
vi. The customer will receive a packet of useful information on efficient irrigation, 

including information on using CIMIS. 
 

b. Evaluations with Four or More Acres ─ 

Agricultural evaluations shall be available to avocado and citrus groves and other 
agricultural operations with four (4) or more acres of agriculture in the Client’s service 
area. The evaluation consists of the following components: 

• Verify that the customer is a customer of one of the Client water districts. 

• Obtain and review water use records. 

• Obtain the customer’s signature on the Cooperator’s Agreement before the 
evaluation is begun which allows the Program field staff to be on the property for 
the purpose of performing the audit. The Cooperator Agreement shall contain a 
hold harmless provision in favor of Client water district. 

• Ascertain acreage under irrigation. 

• Examine the existing irrigation system while it is operating to determine system 
pressure; emitter, micro-sprinkler or sprinkler flowrates; system application rates; 
system pressure; visual observation of other factors and conditions affecting 
system performance. 

• Determine soil characteristics and rooting depth as well as other observations and 
determinations to further examine soil-plant-water relationships as needed to 
improve overall irrigation efficiency. 

• Prepare a Customer Report. The report for four (4) or more acres of agriculture 
will contain the following: 

i. An Executive Summary of the major findings and field staff recommendations. 
ii. A summary of data collected during the evaluation. 
iii. A brief discussion of soil characteristics and related findings. 

Master Services Agreement Attachment A



8 

iv. A summary of the irrigation system’s hydraulic characteristics based on data 
collected including system application rate, system pressure, flow rate and 
uniformities. 

v. Estimated annual crop coefficients. 
vi. Recommendations to improve overall system efficiency, including changes 

and/or upgrades in system hardware, maintenance and management. 
vii. An estimate of annual water losses and potential water savings. 
viii. Specification sheets on the sprinklers/emitters used. 
ix. A discussion or literature with info on ag practices (i.e. fertilization, pest control, 

irrigation scheduling, soil moisture, CIMIS, tensiometers, and soil erosion). 
x. If applicable, an estimate of an irrigation regime that accounts for a percent 

reduction in water deliveries due to drought conditions. 
xi. Any other specific issues of concern raised by the customer. 
 

c. Electrical Conductivity (EC) Mapping/Soil Moisture Sensor System ─ 

Establish an Irrigation Management Plan for site test and control blocks for the 
evaluation of irrigation practices based upon Electrical Conductivity (EC) mapping of 
soils in test blocks. 

• Implement a new irrigation regime using new management plan in test blocks. 
Evaluate water usage and tree water stress. 

• Perform economic evaluation of new irrigation management plan on operating 
costs for growers and in terms of potential water conservation. 

• Promote and maximize the adoption of Irrigation Management Plans by growers 
based upon the findings of the project and expanded through the outreach 
vehicles including workshops, irrigation system evaluations, website, email 
blasts, project fact sheets and local conservation partners. 

• Measure the level of adoption of the Irrigation Management Plans by participants 
in order to determine what irrigation methods work best. 

• Perform a pre-site visit for each qualified site. 

• Perform a post site inspection to verify installation of recommended hardware that 
qualifies for reimbursement. 

• Submit invoices to the Client water district for pass-through funding. 
 

Agriculture Irrigation Efficiency Program (AIEP) Cost of Service: 

 Evaluations of 1 – 5 acres  $525 
 Evaluations of 5.1 – 10 acres  $550 
 Evaluations of 10.1 – 15 acres $600 
 Evaluations of 15.1 – 20 acres $650 
 Evaluations of 20.1 – 25 acres $695 
 Evaluations Above 25 acres  $695 

 

 
 

Master Services Agreement Attachment A



9 

2. National RCS Regional Conservation Partnership Program (RCPP): 

Mission RCD staff will provide on-farm evaluations of irrigation systems to promote 
conservation practices with pre-and post-audits of ag irrigation systems to 1) establish a 
baseline distribution uniformity (DU) and 2) evaluate a new DU for the system after system 
improvements are made to establish water quantity savings. This is supported by SDCWA 
and the participating member agencies. Mission RCD will also provide an initial site 
evaluation for NRCS conservation practices and support eligible producers with the NRCS 
conservation assistance application submission, and if selected for an award, Mission 
RCD will collaborate with NRCS to successfully complete an RCPP project. Soil quality 
will be tested using COMET Planner and Annual Soil Tests.  

Program goals are water conservation with improving irrigation practices, addressing soil 
erosion and health to reduce non-point source pollution loads on waters of the state. 
Resiliency strategies that will be utilized by this project include irrigation system 
improvements for greater efficiency, advanced irrigation management and the 
implementation of soil health practices.  

National RCS Regional Conservation Partnership Program (RCPP) Cost of Service: 

 Evaluations of 1 – 5 acres   $525 
 Evaluations of 5.1 – 10 acres   $550 
 Evaluations of 10.1 – 15 acres  $600 
 Evaluations of 15.1 – 20 acres  $650 
 Evaluations of 20.1 – 25 acres  $695 
 Evaluations Above 25 acres   $695 

 
3. Water Use Evaluations:  

Water use evaluations (WUEs) can be provided to residential and commercial customers 
with less than 1 acre of irrigated landscapes. Home water use evaluations (HWUEs) can 
be available to residential customers including multi-family residences with up to four units 
on a common meter. Commercial water use evaluations (CWUEs) will support 
commercial customers including multi-family residences with 5 or more units.  

a. Indoor Survey ─ 

Mission RCD acknowledges that indoor site-specific data may become a great tool for 
member agencies in determining incentive saturation (i.e. low flush toilet rebates) as 
complying with indoor water use reduction goals is mandated by AB1668 and SB606.  
However, Mission RCD staff do not have the capability to fix indoor leaks and with 
continuing COVID conditions are not comfortable entering the customer’s home. 
Customers will be queried regarding toilets, tub diverters, shower heads, faucets, and 
water heaters for leaks, with device make, age and any issues documented. Indoor 
surveys will be tracked and recorded in the database and submitted with each monthly 
invoice to the Client water district. 

• Provide recommendations to customer regarding available rebates for efficient 
plumbing devices. 

• Explain to the customer how to read their water meter, define the billing unit used 
by the water agency in terms of gallons, and explain the leak detector dial and how 
to mark the meter and return to read it after a period. 

Master Services Agreement Attachment A



10 

• If water-use consumption data is available, provide a water-use consumption 
projection, analyze customer’s water use history and discuss patterns that may 
signal problems such as a growing leak, failure to change irrigation time for the 
winter, etc. 

• Survey report will document findings, provide water savings recommendations, 
matching available resources and/or incentives and relevant supplemental 
educational materials. 

b. Outdoor Survey ─ 

Outdoor surveys include those with and without irrigation controllers; Mission RCD 
field staff will: 

• Measure irrigated landscape area using online or computer-based measurement 
tools, measuring wheel, or planimeter, and include measurement of site, 
verification of irrigable boundaries, and onsite verification. 

• Discuss any patterns that may signal problems such as a growing leak, failure to 
change irrigation time for the winter, etc. 

• Meter and Review; explain to the customer how to read their water meter, define 
the billing unit used by the water agency, explain the leak detector dial and how to 
mark the meter and return to read it after a period. 

• If water-use consumption data is available, provide a water-use consumption 
projection and analyze customer’s water use history.  

• Conduct a thorough Landscape and Irrigation System Inspection to identify water 
savings opportunities; identify irrigation system problems; identify underutilized or 
large turf area, dry spots, valve malfunction, ponding, and lack of hydrozoning. 

• Document percent estimate of the amount of turf and other plant material. 

• Inspect all operating irrigation stations on the site as possible. 

• Document irrigation pressure at one or more points, and if applicable, document 
type of controller and if controller has rain shutoff device or soil moisture sensor. 

• Identify and inspect all operating irrigation control valves, if possible. 

• Determine Application Rate (AR) and Distribution Uniformity (DU). 

• Detailed Irrigation Schedule Review of the site’s existing irrigation schedule and 
make recommendations to maximize the site’s water savings. Use AR to provide 
a custom watering schedule for the tested station(s). Provide proposed schedules 
for all stations as possible based on observation of climate, irrigation type, 
microclimate/soil information, general knowledge of plant material water needs 
(e.g., WUCOLS IV), planting density and if applicable, local water use ordinances. 
An ETo-based chart or landscape watering calculator may be used to develop 
these additional schedules.  

• If applicable, provide potential run time adjustments if recommended improvements 
to the irrigation system are made. 

• Review the recommended watering schedule with the site representative, and 
document if the proposed schedules for each station as possible represent an 
increase, decrease or no change in water use. 

Master Services Agreement Attachment A



11 

• If applicable and with the site representative’s permission, instruct representative 
on programing the irrigation controller using the recommended watering schedule 
and for greatest educational value, ask site representative to handle the controller. 

• If site does not have a weather-based irrigation controller, inform customer of the 
benefits and rebates available to them. 

Additional Data includes documenting existence of gutters and connection to the storm 
drain system and checking site for eligibility and suitability for rainwater harvesting (rain 
barrels, cisterns, rain gardens, etc.). Submitting a descriptive and graphic site report to 
the customer documenting findings, photos of problem areas, water savings 
recommendations, corresponding available resources and incentives, and irrigation 
schedule for each site as possible. Documenting the amount of time spent at the site 
conducting the survey, and if residence is owner occupied or a rental, age of home, reason 
for participating in the Program, and how they heard about the Program. 

Cost of Service: 

 WUE with less than 15,000 sq ft:  $190.00 
 WUE with greater than 15,000 sq ft:  $240.00 
 Commercial Water Use Survey:  TBD 
 

4. Large Landscape Evaluations: 

Available to residential or commercial customers with a minimum of one acre of irrigated 
landscape. Mission RCD field staff will perform: 

• Landscape Area Measurement of irrigated landscape area with approved 
measurement methods/tools and include measurement of site, verification of irrigable 
boundaries, and onsite verification. 

• Landscape Area Sections broken down by sections or by meter to allow property 
owners to see areas with the largest savings potential and prioritize areas to invest 
in. Provide recommendations by meter and indicate leaks, nozzle upgrades and other 
issues in the form of a punch list that the property owner can give to contractors. 

• Water Budget developed to graphically demonstrate the amount of water used 
relative to actual amount needed and estimated water savings and formatted to 
provide clarity and guidance to property owners. 

• Landscape and Irrigation System Inspection of site and irrigation system(s) to identify 
water savings opportunities. 

• Irrigation Schedule Review of site’s existing irrigation schedule, provide 
recommendations to maximize the site’s water savings, and for residential sites and 
with site representative’s permission, instruct representative on programming irrigation 
controller using recommended watering schedule. 

• A GIS Map is provided as an option to the customer. create a GIS map for Large 
Landscape Survey sites and include with report, a sample map shown below in the 
section describing GIS. The map will identify the location of major irrigation 
components, hydrozone types and problem areas. 

• Post Survey Check-In to follow up with customers and remind them of key 
recommendations and incentives.  

Master Services Agreement Attachment A



12 

Additional Data includes a graphic and descriptive site report to customer with summary of 
findings, photos of problem areas, water budget, water savings recommendations, 
corresponding available resources and incentives, and irrigation schedule for each site, and 
formatted to provide clarity and guidance to property owners. Document time spent at audit 
site conducting the audit. 

Cost of Service: 

 Large Landscape Survey with less than 4 acres:   $700.00 
 Large Landscape Survey with more than 4 acres:  $900.00 
 GIS Mapping:       hourly rate 

 

5. Irrigation Checkup: 

Landscape and Irrigation System Inspection with Mission RCD field staff conducting a thorough 
site and irrigation system inspection to identify water savings opportunities including:  

• Identifying problems. 
• Recording percent estimate of the amount of turf and other plant material. 
• Evaluating landscape water requirements based on general plant material water needs 

(e.g., WUCOLS IV). 
• Inspecting irrigation by running all operating irrigation stations as possible, reflecting 

irrigation types, typical layouts, and pressure zones on the site. 
• Recording irrigation pressure at one or more points. 
• Documenting controller if it has a rain shutoff device or soil moisture sensor. 
• Determining AR and DU. 

Additional Data include simplified site report provided to the customer documenting findings, 
photos of problem areas, water savings recommendations, corresponding available resources 
and incentives, and irrigation schedule for each site. Field staff will document the amount of 
time spent at the site conducting the survey. 

Cost of Service: 

 Irrigation Checkup with less than 4 acres: $180 
 Irrigation Checkup with more than 4 acres: $280 

 

6. Follow-up Irrigation Evaluation: 

Available to residential or commercial customers with a minimum of one acre of irrigated 
landscape that have previously received a Large Landscape Survey. Mission RCD field staff 
will provide a second site and irrigation system inspection to 

• Identify unresolved problems such as meter, lateral, drip and wiper seal leaks; broken 
heads; misaligned heads; mismatched heads; high/low pressure; spray deflection; sunken 
sprinklers; plugged equipment; arc misalignment; underutilized or large turf area; dry spots; 
valve malfunction; ponding; incorrect irrigation schedule; high water use plant palette; and 
lack of hydrozoning.  

Master Services Agreement Attachment A



13 

• Checklist of unresolved items (relative to initial large landscape survey) will be completed 
with reasons for inaction any new issues documented and provided in the report to customer. 

Cost of Service: 

 Follow-up Irrigation Evaluation: $200 

 
7. Virtual Follow-up Irrigation Controller Appointment: 

Available to residential or commercial customers with less than one acre of irrigated landscape 
who have previously received a water use evaluation. Field staff will advise the customer at 
the time of site visit that if they have follow-up questions or specific concerns, they can fill out 
a simple online request for an appointment, and the auditor will call them.  

As the customer information will already be in the system, Mission RCD staff will develop a 
separate application for customers to complete online on the application page. Appointments 
will be scheduled for 30 minutes with field staff evaluator who completed the evaluation. Mission 
RCD field staff will develop a follow-up checklist form as a guide and to document the virtual 
visit and will follow up with customers that applied by phone to provide additional education on 
reprogramming the customer’s irrigation controller, review the recommended watering schedule, 
and provide instruction on how to reprogram the irrigation controller.  

Cost of Service: 

 Virtual Follow-up Irrigation Controller Appointment: $50 
 

8. GIS Mapping:   

Mission RCD utilizes Geographic Information System (ArcGIS) software to provide accurate 
irrigated area measurements. These measurements are created with high quality aerial 
imagery and allow Mission RCD staff to create accurate water budgets and site maps used 
as visual aids for the customer, as seen in the image below.  

 
 
 
Cost of Service: 
       GIS Mapping: hourly rate 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

         Sample GIS Map Aerial Image of Evaluation Site 

Master Services Agreement Attachment A



14 

9. Program and Project Development: 

As water districts and systems are increasingly challenged by the growing need for 
conservation, adapting to climate change, and more, Mission RCD anticipates working with 
the Parties to provide additional conservation options. An initial easily adopted option done 
in coordination with the Client would be to identify up to ten sites annually that are 
overwatering, contact the customer and offer a free irrigation evaluation. Future program 
support could include projects or programs specific to each water districts needs and 
interests, such as technical assistance for stormwater and erosion control and management, 
leak detection, flume support, education (including 4th Grade water calendar contest), 
sustainable landscaping, aerial photo imagery (drone) for videos and virtual tours, and 
troubleshooting calls from water district customers. Programs identified for immediate 
development are described below. 
 

a.  CropSWAP Program ─ 

Mission RCD field staff support Rancho California Water District (RCWD) with their AIEP 
and CropSWAP/RootstalkSWAP program via MOU with TEAM RCD. TEAM RCD 
provides site evaluation requests to Mission RCD, Mission RCD field staff schedule the 
site visit with the customer and perform an irrigation system test while the system is 
running. An assessment of soil type and water holding capacity is done. Audits often find 
low emission uniformity and the auditor explains the audit findings and the rebates with 
the grower or farm manager and makes recommendations for irrigation system 
improvements to increase uniformity, which result in greater irrigation efficiency. 

A detailed audit report is sent to the customer that details the site, current irrigation 
system efficiency levels including DU and AR, soil information, recommendations for 
system improvements and water savings on the property that integrate the use of efficient 
irrigation technology, components, and irrigation scheduling practices. An analysis of 
water usage history and irrigation scheduling relevant to the crops on the property is also 
included, and an itemized list of suggested components is developed by the auditor and 
provided to the customer for purchase. A post-inspection site visit is scheduled and 
completed by the auditor after participant submits original receipts to verify system 
installation and successful operation of the retrofit and purchased components. 

Time and Cost of Service: 

 TBD 
 

b.  Soil Moisture Sensor Program / NASA / USDA OpenET ─ 

OpenET is a new web-based platform that puts NASA data into the hands of farmers, 
water managers and conservation groups. Based on more than two decades of research, 
and developed through a public-private collaboration led by NASA, Environmental 
Defense Fund, Desert Research Institute, Google Earth, HabitatSeven and several 
universities with input from more than 100 stakeholders, OpenET uses open-source 
models and Google Earth Engine to provide satellite-based information on water 
consumption in areas as small as a quarter of an acre at daily, monthly and yearly 
intervals. Until OpenET, there was no single, low-cost operational system for measuring 
and distributing evapotranspiration data at the scale of individual fields. More information 
about OpenET is available at: openetdata.org/ 

 

Master Services Agreement Attachment A



15 

Applications of Open ET include: 

• Support for irrigation practices that maximize “crop per drop” and reduce costs for 
fertilizer and water. 

• Support for water trading programs that protect the financial viability of farms during 
droughts while helping to make water available for other beneficial uses. 

• Development of water budgets and innovative management programs that promote 
adequate water supplies for agriculture, people, and ecosystems. 

• Support for groundwater management programs that require consistent, accurate 
ET data for monitoring historical and current consumptive water use. 

 

Time and Cost of Service: 

 TBD 
 

c. Workshops ─ 

Mission RCD could provide workshops including a series of water conservation 
workshops with irrigation company representatives to educate the community on new 
systems and be available for customer questions and answers to their irrigation needs. 
This could include an Ask an Irrigation Expert open “office hour” on a weekly or monthly 
basis for water customers to ask about and resolve their pressing irrigation issues. 

Time and Cost of Service: 

 TBD 
 

d. Classroom Presentations ─ 

Mission RCD staff could provide educational presentations based on existing programs 
to local classrooms to educate students on conservation topics, to include: 

• Water Conservation 
• Stormwater Pollution Prevention 

• General Water Science  
• Watershed Conservation 

Time and Cost of Service: 

 TBD 

 
10. As-Needed Services: 

Additional services can be recurring, such as an Annual Report, or address a specific or 
unexpected need that might include marketing and promotional support at local events 
attended by Mission RCD staff. For example, Mission RCD staff participate at the San Diego 
Farm Bureau’s annual Farm and Nursery Expo and Graze at the Fields, the Rincon Fire and 
Water Expo, the Fallbrook Wildfire Symposium and UCCE / UCANR educational workshops. 

Time and Cost of Service: 

 TBD 
 

Master Services Agreement Attachment A



16 

11. Deliverables: 

All work products developed under this contract are the property of the Client water districts, 
and includes original reports, writings, recordings, drawings, files, database records, and 
detailed calculations. At the conclusion of the contract, all program files shall be transferred 
to the respective Client water districts. Mission RCD will deliver the following records to the 
Client water districts formatted according to Client specifications: 

• Audit reports on a monthly basis (digital) 
• Participant and site data on a monthly basis (digital) 
• Quarterly activity reports  
• Annual reports 
• Marketing and program collateral material on an as-needed basis. 

 
12. Quality Control: 

Quality control methods are imbedded in Mission RCD’s culture and detailed in Mission 
RCD’s Standard Operating Procedures Manual and begins with receipt of the participant 
application, and includes verifying customer and account information with customer and 
member agency; site visit confirmation calls to confirm appointment, customer contact and 
scheduling timelines fit the scope of work; review and verification of audit data from the 
handhelds; monthly tracking updates to participating agencies; checking invoicing 
thoroughly for accuracy; providing excellent customer care and forwarding complaints to the 
proper administration, and providing an online customer satisfaction survey for program 
participants. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Master Services Agreement Attachment A



17 

ATTACHMENT B 

ORGANIZATION AND KEY PERSONNEL 

 
Mission RCD’s project organization and key personnel are described below: 

 

 
I. Key Personnel 

Listed below are the key Mission RCD staff currently assigned and proposed to support the 
resource Conservation Services Program, with a description of their experience on projects 
of similar size, capacity, and dollar value. Those projects are noted with the contact 
information provided at the end of the key personnel list. Key staff resumes available upon 
request. Mission RCD is a drug-free workplace. 

 
a. Darcy Cook, District Manager 

Darcy Cook has served as the Mission RCD District Manager since May 2020, overseeing 
the day-to-day operation of the District and its programs including the SDCWA’s 
WaterSmart Field Services Program and the Agriculture Water Management Programs, 
MWDOC’s SmartTimer Rebate Program, TEAM RCD’s AIEP and CropSWAP programs. 
Darcy provides program, administration and contract management; hiring and overseeing 
staff and subcontractors to ensure that adequate staffing and resources are available to 
complete work on schedule; reviews and signs invoices; meets monthly with Mission RCD 
program managers and customer program managers; writes the annual reports; supports 
programs at events; and keeps up to date with conservation and water industry issues, 
trends, and research.  

b. Ani Vartanians, Water Conservation Program Manager  

Ani Vartanians has supported the San Diego County Water Authority’s WaterSmart 
Field Services Program and the MWDOC SmartTimer Rebate Program since 
September 2021, providing excellent, detailed program administration. Ani manages the 
field staff and their schedules; works closely with subcontractors; attends the monthly 
program meeting with the District Manager and client program managers; manages data 
and creates monthly invoices; supports programs at events and holds it all together.  

Master Services Agreement Attachment B



18 

c. Lisa Dibbell, Conservation Program Assistant 

Lisa Dibbell provides as-needed administration and other support to Mission RCD’s 
water conservation programs. She is QWEL certified and has experience working with 
local nurseries. Lisa also manages Mission RCD’s pollinator habitat corridor programs. 

d. Joel Menard, Senior Irrigation Evaluator  

Joel has extensive experience in landscape design and irrigation system installation and 
is QWEL certified. As the Mission RCD Senior Irrigation Auditor since 2021, Joel 
conducts the range of Mission RCD irrigation evaluation services. Joel meets with 
customers to discuss their irrigation and landscape issues, discusses the evaluation 
results, rebates and resources, and provides additional educational material and 
program resources. Joel has played an active role in addressing program and service 
efficiencies and improvements. 

e. Jameson Meyst, Ag Irrigation Evaluator 

Jameson has worked with Mission RCD since 2022 supporting Mission RCD’s 
agriculture irrigation programs for the San Diego County Water Authority and TEAM 
RCD. Jameson is QWEL certified, is a CCI certified Carbon Farm Planner and has 
certificates in nursery crop and horticulture production. He is experienced with CDFA 
Climate Smart programs and soil testing practices.  

Master Services Agreement Attachment B





































































































 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION   (Agenda Item No. 10)  
 
Placeholder 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



       Current Per Diem Rate: $100.00 Maximum Per Diem Allowed:       $432.24

Calendar Maximum Calendar Maximum 
Year Increase Year Increase

Subtotal 207.91
1994 5% 5.00 2009 5% 10.40

Subtotal 105.00 Subtotal 218.31
1995 5% 5.25 2010 5% 10.92

Subtotal 110.25 Subtotal 229.23
1996 5% 5.51 2011 5% 11.46

Subtotal 115.76 Subtotal 240.69
1997 5% 5.79 2012 5% 12.03

Subtotal 121.55 Subtotal 252.72
1998 5% 6.08 2013 5% 12.64

Subtotal 127.63 Subtotal 265.36
1999 5% 6.38 2014 5% 13.27

Subtotal 134.01 Subtotal 278.63
2000 5% 6.70 2015 5% 13.93

Subtotal 140.71 Subtotal 292.56
2001 5% 7.04 2016 5% 14.63

Subtotal 147.75 Subtotal 307.19
2002 5% 7.39 2017 5% 15.36

Subtotal 155.14 Subtotal 322.55
2003 5% 7.76 2018 5% 16.13

Subtotal 162.90 Subtotal 338.68
2004 5% 8.15 2019 5% 16.93

Subtotal 171.05 Subtotal 355.61
2005 5% 8.55 2020 5% 17.78

Subtotal 179.60 Subtotal 373.39
2006 5% 8.98 2021 5% 18.67

Subtotal 188.58 Subtotal 392.06
2007 5% 9.43 2022 5% 19.60

Subtotal 198.01 Subtotal 411.66
2008 5% 9.90 2023 5% 20.58

Subtotal 207.91 TOTAL 432.24

2023 Maximum Board Per Diem Calculation

Valley Center Municipal Water District


	AGENDA 5-1-2023
	1. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Monday, April 3, 2023
	2. Audit Demands and Wire Disbursements
	3. Quarterly Expense Reimbursement Disclosures (Oct. 1 – Dec. 31, 2022) per GC §53065.5
	4. Request Action in Support of VCFPD Increased Property Tax Allocation
	5. Request Authorization to Enter into a Master Services Agreement with the Mission Resources Conservation District (MRCD) for Water Conservation Services
	6. Review of the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) Consolidated Redevelopment Oversight Board Election
	7. Request to Set Public Hearing Date for May 15, 2023 to Consider Proposed Miscellaneous Water Meter Fees and Charges, and Related Administrative Code Changes
	8. Review of Budget Policies
	9. Review of Revenue and Expense Projections in the Proposed Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget
	10. Review of General Information
	11. Board of Directors’ Per Diem Biennial Review and Consideration of Modification



